
 

 
 

 

JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
 

2.00 pm 
Tuesday 

13 January 2015 

Council Chamber, 
Redbridge Town Hall, 

Ilford 
 

 
COUNCILLORS: 

 

 

 
LONDON BOROUGH OF BARKING & 
DAGENHAM 
 

  
LONDON BOROUGH OF  

WALTHAM FOREST 
 

Councillor Sanchia Alasia 
Councillor Danielle Lawrence 
Councillor Eileen Keller 
 

 Councillor Stuart Emmerson 
Councillor Sheree Rackham 
Councillor Richard Sweden 

 
LONDON BOROUGH OF HAVERING 
 

  
ESSEX COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
Councillor Nic Dodin 
Councillor Gillian Ford 
Councillor Dilip Patel 
 

 Councillor Chris Pond 
 

 
LONDON BOROUGH OF REDBRIDGE 
 

  

Councillor Stuart Bellwood 
Councillor Mark Santos (Chairman) 
Councillor Tom Sharpe 
 

  

  CO-OPTED MEMBERS: 

  Ian Buckmaster, Healthwatch Havering 
Mike New, Healthwatch Redbridge 

Richard Vann, Healthwatch Barking & 
Dagenham 

Alli Anthony, Healthwatch Waltham 
Forest 

 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee, 13 January 2015 

 
 

 

 

 
For information about the meeting please contact: 

Anthony Clements 
anthony.clements@oneSource.co.uk, tel: 01708 433065 

 
 

Essex County Council       

  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Protocol for members of the public wishing to report on meetings of the Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Members of the public are entitled to report on meetings of Council, Committees and Cabinet, 
except in circumstances where the public have been excluded as permitted by law. 
 
Reporting means:- 
 

 filming, photographing or making an audio recording of the proceedings of the meeting; 

 using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at 
a meeting as it takes place or later; or 

 reporting or providing commentary on proceedings at a meeting, orally or in writing, so 
that the report or commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later if the 
person is not present. 

 
Anyone present at a meeting as it takes place is not permitted to carry out an oral commentary 
or report. This is to prevent the business of the meeting being disrupted. 
 
Anyone attending a meeting is asked to advise staff on 01708 433076 that they wish to report 
on the meeting and how they wish to do so. This is to enable employees to guide anyone 
choosing to report on proceedings to an appropriate place from which to be able to report 
effectively. 
 
Members of the public are asked to remain seated throughout the meeting as standing up and 
walking around could distract from the business in hand. 



Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee, 13 January 2015 

 
 

 

 

NOTES ABOUT THE MEETING 
 

1. HEALTH AND SAFETY 
  

The Joint Committee is committed to protecting the health and safety of 
everyone who attends its meetings. 
 
At the beginning of the meeting, there will be an announcement about what 
you should do if there is an emergency during its course. For your own 
safety and that of others at the meeting, please comply with any 
instructions given to you about evacuation of the building, or any other 
safety related matters. 
 
 

2. CONDUCT AT THE MEETING 
 
Although members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Joint Committee, 
they have no right to speak at them. Seating for the public is, however, limited and the 
Joint Committee cannot guarantee that everyone who wants to be present in the meeting 
room can be accommodated. When it is known in advance that there is likely to be 
particular public interest in an item the Joint Committee will endeavour to provide an 
overspill room in which, by use of television links, members of the public will be able to see 
and hear most of the proceedings. 
 
The Chairman of the meeting has discretion, however, to invite members of the public to 
ask questions or to respond to points raised by Members. Those who wish to do that may 
find it helpful to advise the Clerk before the meeting so that the Chairman is aware that 
someone wishes to ask a question. 
 
PLEASE REMEMBER THAT THE CHAIRMAN MAY REQUIRE ANYONE WHO ACTS IN 
A DISRUPTIVE MANNER TO LEAVE THE MEETING AND THAT THE MEETING MAY BE 
ADJOURNED IF NECESSARY WHILE THAT IS ARRANGED.  

 
If you need to leave the meeting before its end, please remember that others present have 
the right to listen to the proceedings without disruption. Please leave quietly and do not 
engage others in conversation until you have left the meeting room. 



Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee, 13 January 2015 

 
 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 
1 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS (Pages 1 - 2) 

 
 The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other 

events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation. Directions to the 
building are attached. 
 

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE 
MEMBERS (IF ANY) - RECEIVE.  

 

3 DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS  

 
 Members are invited to disclose any interests in any of the items on the agenda at this 

point of the meeting. Members may still disclose an interest in an item at any point 
prior to the consideration of the matter.  
 

4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 3 - 10) 

 
 To agree as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the joint committee held on 

14 October 2014 (attached).  
 

5 PHARMACY ARRANGEMENTS  

 
 To receive a presentation from a local pharmacist on the relationship between 

pharmacists and GPs in the Essex area. 
 

6 MATERNITY SERVICES  

 
 To receive updates from health officers and patient representatives on maternity 

services at local hospitals. 
 

7 NHS 111  

 
 A representative of the NHS 111 service provider will summarise the key features of 

the NHS 111 service in Outer North East London. 
 

8 URGENT CARE PROCUREMENT  

 
 To receive an update from commissioners on the Urgent Care Procurement 

Programme.   
 

9 PROVISIONAL ITEM: GREAT ORMOND STREET HOSPITAL  

 
 To scrutinise services provided by Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children NHS 

Foundation Trust.  
 
 
 



Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee, 13 January 2015 

 
 

 

10 URGENT BUSINESS  

 
 To consider any other items in respect of which the Chairman if of the opinion, by 

reason of special circumstances which shall be specified in the minutes, that the item 
shall be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 

 Anthony Clements 
Clerk to the Joint Committee 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Map of LB Redbridge Town Hall  
128-142 High Road, Ilford, Essex 1G1 2DD 
 

 

   

   

    

 

 

Meeting rooms 
Please report to reception on arrival 

The Council Chamber and Committee Rooms 1 & 2 are on the 1st Floor 
Rooms 42, 43 and 49 are on the 2nd Floor 

 

Travel directions  
 
Walking 
The Town Hall is 5 minutes walk from Ilford Station, which is in zone 4. Trains run 
every 10 minutes from Liverpool Street and you can also join the train at Stratford. 
Journey time is 15 mins by train from Liverpool Street and 7 mins from Stratford. When 
you come out at Ilford station turn right and cross at the lights. Walk through the Town 
Centre (passing an Iceland on your right and The Mall on your left) until you come to 
the Town Hall on your right. For evening meetings please use the side entrance (near 
the Abbey National Bank). A bus may can be found via the www.tfl.gov.uk. 
 
Driving 
If you intend to drive, parking spaces at the Town Hall are limited and will need to 
be booked in advance through the Scrutiny Team on 0208 708 2375/ 2739. A pay 
and display system is operational between 6.30 – 9.30pm. If a place has been 
reserved in advance for these times, a permit needs to be obtained from Security 
at the side entrance in Oakfield Road and displayed in the windscreen. Alternative 
car parking facilities are available in Clements Road or in The Exchange Mall. The 
nearest motorways are the A12 (alight at Gants Hill for Cranbrook Road and proceed 
toward Winston Way) or the A406 (alight at Ilford for Winston Way). From the Winston 
Way dual carriageway, take the first left near Cineworld and proceed straight ahead 
for the Town Hall car park in Chadwick Road. Do not turn right towards the library, 
as only buses can turn right and you may incur a penalty fine.  
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1

http://www.streetmap.co.uk/newsearch.srf?x=543250&y=186750&z=1&ar=Y&isp=187&ism=500&searchp=newsearch.srf&mapp=newmap.srf
http://www.streetmap.co.uk/newsearch.srf?x=543750&y=186750&z=1&ar=Y&isp=187&ism=500&searchp=newsearch.srf&mapp=newmap.srf
http://www.streetmap.co.uk/newsearch.srf?x=544250&y=186750&z=1&ar=Y&isp=187&ism=500&searchp=newsearch.srf&mapp=newmap.srf
http://www.streetmap.co.uk/newsearch.srf?x=543250&y=186250&z=1&ar=Y&isp=187&ism=500&searchp=newsearch.srf&mapp=newmap.srf
http://www.streetmap.co.uk/newsearch.srf?x=543750&y=186250&z=1&ar=Y&isp=187&ism=500&searchp=newsearch.srf&mapp=newmap.srf
http://www.streetmap.co.uk/newsearch.srf?x=544250&y=186250&z=1&ar=Y&isp=187&ism=500&searchp=newsearch.srf&mapp=newmap.srf
http://www.streetmap.co.uk/newsearch.srf?x=543250&y=185750&z=1&ar=Y&isp=187&ism=500&searchp=newsearch.srf&mapp=newmap.srf
http://www.streetmap.co.uk/newsearch.srf?x=543750&y=185750&z=1&ar=Y&isp=187&ism=500&searchp=newsearch.srf&mapp=newmap.srf
http://www.streetmap.co.uk/newsearch.srf?x=544250&y=185750&z=1&ar=Y&isp=187&ism=500&searchp=newsearch.srf&mapp=newmap.srf
http://www.tfl.gov.uk/tfl/gettingaround/maps/buses/pdf/ilford-2141.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



1M 

 

 
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
Havering Town Hall 

14 October 2014 (2.00  - 4.05 pm) 
 
Present: 
 
COUNCILLORS 
 
London Borough of 
Barking & Dagenham 
 

Danielle Lawrence and Eileen Keller   
 

London Borough of 
Havering 
 

Nic Dodin (Chairman) and Gillian Ford* 
 

London Borough of 
Redbridge 
 

Stuart Bellwood and Mark Santos  
 

London Borough of 
Waltham Forest 

Richard Sweden  
 
 

*- part of meeting 
 
Co-opted Members present: 
Alli Anthony, Healthwatch Waltham Forest 
Anne-Marie Dean, Healthwatch Havering 
Mike New, Healthwatch Redbridge 
 
NHS officers present: 
Zoe Anderson, North East London Commissioning Support Unit 
Rylla Baker, NHS England 
Alan Steward, Havering Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 
 
Council officers present: 
Bruce Morris, Barking & Dagenham, Adult Social Care 
Masuma Ahmed, Scrutiny Officer, Barking & Dagenham 
Anthony Clements, Principal Committee Officer, Havering (Clerk to the 
Committee) 
Jilly Szymanski, Health Scrutiny Coordinator, Redbridge 
 
One member of the press was present. 
 
 

14. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Chairman gave details of the arrangements in case of fire or other 
event that would require the evacuation of the meeting room. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee, 14 October 2014 

 

2M 

 

15. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF 
SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (IF ANY) - RECEIVE.  

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Sanchia Alasia (Barking & 
Dagenham) Dilip Patel (Havering) Tom Sharpe (Redbridge) and Chris Pond 
(Essex). 
 
Apologies were also received from Richard Vann (Healthwatch barking & 
Dagenham) and from Ian Buckmaster (Healthwatch Havering) (Anne-Marie 
Dean substituting). 
 

16. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 
There were no disclosures of interest. 
 

17. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting were agreed as a correct record and signed by 
the Chairman. 
 
Under matters arising, members from Redbridge confirmed that the 
information they had requested on locations of mobile breast cancer 
screening units had now been received as had an assurance that there 
were no plans to change that service. The Committee noted that the 
proposed breast cancer service changes had also been scrutinised by the 
Havering Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee who had supported the 
proposals. The Committee therefore AGREED that formal consultation on 
the breast cancer service proposals was not required. 
 

18. URGENT CARE PROCUREMENT  
 
The chief operating officer of Havering CCG explained that the way in which 
people currently accessed urgent care services in Outer North East London 
was very complicated. The four local CCGs therefore wished to improve this 
system.  
 
At present, there were a large number of different providers of urgent care 
across the four boroughs. The procurement exercise would cover services 
including NHS 111 and the GP put of hours service. All walk-in centres in 
NHS London would also be included with the exception of that at Barking 
Community Hospital where a new contract had recently been put in place. 
 
Work on the procurement exercise was in progress with stakeholders 
including Councils, CCGs and patient engagement forums. Each CCG also 
had a lay member for patient and public involvement.  
 
The priority for any new services procured was that they be of high quality 
and clinically safe. Services should also be responsive to patient needs and 
provide a seamless service. It was not possible to continue with the existing 
system. The CCGs therefore wished to procure an innovative service. Any 

Page 4



Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee, 14 October 2014 

 

3M 

 

successful bidder would also have to demonstrate that it had strong public 
and patient involvement. This would also apply to any sub-contractors 
involved. 
 
A process of competitive dialogue would be used during the procurement 
which would allow bidders to show how they would take services forward. It 
was anticipated that final bids for the urgent care service would be 
submitted to the CCGs by April 2015. It was hoped the successful bidder 
would be announced by July with the new service starting in September 
2015. Should a period of formal consultation be required, it was possible 
that these dates would need to be amended. 
 
The chief operating officer agreed that it was critical that patients and the 
public were engaged in the procurement process. Patient engagement 
forums had been asked what they felt were the key elements of the urgent 
care pathways and these forums would be involved in the decision making 
process. The CCGs felt that the procurement was an exciting opportunity to 
resolve issues in urgent care.  
 
The CCGs were keen to bring data together to understand patient flows 
across the system. It was confirmed that discussions had been held with the 
patient engagement forum in Havering and that consultation with patient 
groups in all boroughs would be ongoing. 
 
It was explained that not many places in the UK had previously undertaken 
reprocurement on this scale, across the whole of the pathway. The 
appointment of a consortium of providers was therefore a possibility. A lead 
provider would however be expected to be appointed to take the lead with 
other organisations. This would include work with GPs, the local Hospitals 
Trust etc. A final specification for the urgent care services would be 
developed by the end of March.  
 
An estimate of the proportion of A&E attendees who would be better placed 
in urgent care was 25-30% (not including Waltham Forest) and figures could 
be provided for the proportion in the different A&E departments. It was not 
possible to guarantee that services would remain in precisely the same 
locations as currently as this depended on the proposals received from 
providers.  
 
Some consultation events had only been held in the daytime thus far but the 
CCGs were attempting to address this by e.g. holding stakeholder events 
during the evening.  
 
The CCGs were already looking at sharing patient records across the 
system and would look at provider proposals around this. It was not possible 
at this stage to determine what proposals would constitute a significant 
change to local services and hence require a period of formal consultation. 
The detailed service proposals would need to be considered before this 
could be decided. Four bids had been received this far from organisations in 

Page 5



Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee, 14 October 2014 

 

4M 

 

both the NHS and private sector. Due to reasons of commercial 
confidentiality, it was not possible to give any further details at this stage.  
 
Bids had been made to the Prime Minister’s Challenge Fund around data 
sharing of care records but the chief operating officer would look into the 
Pioneers Project of the Better Care Fund as a potential alternative source of 
funding.   
 
The Committee NOTED the position. 
 
 
 
         
 

19. INTERMEDIATE CARE CONSULTATION  
 
The consultation on changes to intermediate care services had been 
discussed in each of the affected boroughs – Barking & Dagenham, 
Havering and Redbridge. Meetings had taken place with overview and 
scrutiny committees, health and wellbeing boards and patient and 
community groups. The consultation had in fact been extended by a period 
of two weeks and was due to close on 15 October. There had been 
approximately 300 responses to the consultation to date. 
 
Officers felt that the consultation was clear that the number of rehabilitation 
beds was reducing as many of these services could now be provided in 
people’s homes. Approximately 9,000 people had been treated under the 
new model, compared to 1,000 if the bed base only model had been used. 
The new services (community treatment team and intensive rehabilitation 
service) had also received good feedback from patients. 
 
Members from Redbridge welcomed there being more services available at 
home but were disappointed that much of the consultation had taken place 
over the summer period. Redbridge had also previously asked for the 
consultation period to be extended. There were also concerns in Redbridge 
over the bed modelling system used and Redbridge Members indicated that 
they were minded to refer the matter to the Secretary of State.    
 
A Member from Waltham Forest reported that a constituent had recently 
been discharged to the Heronwood & Galleon Unit at the age of 102 and 
had received a very good service.  
 
It was not certain what the average number of physiotherapy visits per week 
was but visits could take place up to four times per day. Officers could 
supply data on the number of patients received daily or four-times daily 
physiotherapy visits.  
 
It was accepted that staff recruitment was an issue across the health 
economy but both the Community Treatments Teams and the Intensive 
Rehabilitation service were currently fully staffed. 

Page 6



Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee, 14 October 2014 

 

5M 

 

 
The number of beds at Grays Court in Dagenham would be reduced as 
services were centralised at the King George site. The stroke beds at Grays 
Court would be retained however as they were not part of the consultation. 
If the rehabilitation beds were removed from Grays Court, the future use of 
the building would be considered.  
 
There were performance indicators measured for discharge services and 
outcomes from rehabilitation services. The reasons why people were 
admitted to hospital were also considered. 
 
Officers would provide figures on the proportion of step up and step down 
referrals to the rehabilitation service. The number of step up referrals had 
reduced in the last year due to the introduction of the Community Treatment 
Team.  
Officers clarified that the Ainsley Rehabilitation Unit was based in Waltham 
Forest and was not part of this consultation. Only one patient from the 
affected boroughs had used the unit for intermediate care and this had been 
requested under their patient choice. The Ainsley Unit was also run by the 
North East London NHS Foundation Trust.  
 
Officers were aware of the National Audit of Intermediate Care Beds 2013 
but felt that the audit had been a snapshot and added that it had not been 
obligatory for Trusts or CCGs to participate.  
 
The Committee AGREED to keep to the individual borough Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Responses to the consultation and decided not to submit a 
response on behalf of the Joint Committee. 
 
A Member’s view was noted that support for those cared for at home should 
have at least the intensity of support for those cared for in hospital. 
 
 
 
 

20. GP LIST SIZES AND CONTRACT ARRANGEMENTS  
 
The Deputy Head of Primary Care (London Region) at NHS England 
explained that strategic planning groups were being introduced consisting of 
the CCGs from, for example, Barking & Dagenham, Havering and 
Redbridge. There was increasing to bring CCGs together in order that 
strategic planning group could take over co-commissioning arrangements 
for primary care. 
 
NHS England was also required to make a 15% management cost saving 
which meant 24 people would be lost from the current London team of 108.  
 
The new GP/General Medical Services (GMS) contract from 2015/16 was 
expected to lead to more GO federations and practices working together 

Page 7



Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee, 14 October 2014 

 

6M 

 

etc. There would be more extended GP hours and weekend opening. More 
effective use of IT would also be expected.   
 
The current (2014) GP/GMS contract had seen money going into practices 
per patient but would also see the beginning of the removal of the Minimum 
Practice Income Guarantee over the next seven years. There would also 
now be a named GP for all patients over the age of 75. This would extend to 
a named GP for all patients under the 2015/16 contract which would also 
expect GPs to take over commissioning of an out of hours provider.  
 
The Friends and Family test would start for primary from December with 
results being published from January 2015. From January 2015, patients 
would also be able to register with a GP near to where they worked as well 
as with a home visiting service. New emphasis would be placed on GPs 
identifying cases of dementia avoiding unplanned admissions to hospital. 
 
It was also explained that patient participation and alcohol reduction 
services would change under the 2015/16 contract to become contractual 
requirements of GPs. The formula for calculating pay to GPs would also be 
reviewed to ensure it was more reflective of levels of deprivation etc. GP net 
earnings would be published from April 2015. 
 
There were also expected to be a lot of IT changes under the 2015/16 GP 
contract. All IT funding came from NHS England and GP practices would be 
expected to introduce on-line services such appointment booking and the 
availability of medical records.  
 
In Havering for example, the overall number of GP practices had reduced by 
four over the last year. The number of smaller practices in Havering had 
also reduced from 21 to 13. The number of whole time equivalent GPs was 
reducing across the four Outer North East London boroughs and it was 
accepted that the number of GPs retiring was an issue for the whole area.  
 
The NHS England officer accepted that there was still a difference between 
list size and the total population for each borough. List maintenance was 
being undertaken, concentrating on female groups. The overall GP list size 
for ONEL was however continuing to rise.  
 
GPs were required to provide appointments to meet the reasonable need of 
their population but it was emphasised that NHS England had no powers or 
information concerning GP appointments or waiting times. NHS England did 
wish however to work with CCGs to improve access. NHS England was that 
patients were able to access a full range of services. The number of sole 
GP practices in the ONEL boroughs could be provided.    
 
A representative of Havering CCG added that money had been received 
from the Prime Minister’s Challenge Fund to extend access to GPs. It was 
hoped that the new GP Federations could be used to provide more 
appointments and GP services collectively.  
 

Page 8



Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee, 14 October 2014 

 

7M 

 

Some GP contracts such as those for Personal Medical Services did include 
key performance indicators and these were monitored by NHS England. 
The standard GP contract for General Medical Services did not however 
include these types of indicators.  
 
Complaints about GPs should normally be received by the GP practice itself 
but these could also be e-mailed to NHS England direct. While NHS 
England could only collate complaints, this did allow practices which 
received large numbers of complaints to be identified.  
 
The Committee NOTED the presentation. 
 
  
 

21. AMENDMENTS TO COMMITTEE'S TERMS OF REFERENCE  
 
The Committee considered a report by the clerk to the Committee 
suggesting some changes to the Committee’s Terms of Reference in light if 
the latest Department of Health guidance on health scrutiny. The report was 
AGREED without division and it was RESOLVED: 
 
That the following paragraphs be added to the Committee’s Terms of 
Reference: 
 
Formal Consultations and Referrals to Secretary of State 
 
25. Under guidance on Local Authority Health Scrutiny issued by the 

Department of Health in June 2014, only the JHOSC may respond to 
a formal consultation on substantial variation proposals covering 
health services in more than one constituent Council area. This 
power also extends to the provision of information or the requirement 
of relevant NHS officers to attend before the JHOSC in connection 
with the consultation. 

 
26. The JHOSC may only refer matters directly to the Secretary of State 

on behalf of Councils who have formally agreed to delegate this 
power to it.  

 
It was also noted that the introductory wording in the Committee’s agenda 
papers would need to be revised in the light of recent Regulations allowing 
for the filming or recording of meetings by members of the public.  
 
 

22. COMMITTEE'S WORK PROGRAMME 2014/15  
 
The Committee’s work programme was noted and there were no current 
changes suggested. 
 

23. NEXT MEETING  

Page 9



Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee, 14 October 2014 

 

8M 

 

 
The next meeting of the Committee would take place on Tuesday 13 
January 2015 at 2 pm at Redbridge Town Hall. 
 

24. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There was no urgent business. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Chairman 
 

 

Page 10


	Agenda
	1 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	Minutes


